Form No. 10-300 (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

PHOI	1125	5)DA	TA	SIL
FUH NPS USE C	INLY			
RECEIVED AP	R'01 g	)75		
DATE ENTERED	. APR 2	1 1975	)	

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS NAME HISTORIC Eastern Lock of the Chesapeake and Delaware Canal AND/OR COMMON 2 LOCATION STREET & NUMBER Battery Park NOT FOR PUBLICATION CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT Delaware City VICINITY OF One CODE 10 CODE STATE COUNTY Delaware 003 New Castle CLASSIFICATION **CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS** PRESENT USE X\_PUBLIC \_\_DISTRICT \_\_OCCUPIED \_\_AGRICULTURE ....MUSEUM \_\_BUILDING(S)
X\_STRUCTURE XX\_PARK \_\_PRIVATE \_\_UNOCCUPIED \_\_COMMERCIAL \_вотн \_WORK IN PROGRESS \_EDUCATIONAL ---PRIVATE RESIDENCE \_\_SITE **PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE** \_\_ENTERTAINMENT --- RELIGIOUS \_\_OBJECT \_YES: RESTRICTED \_\_IN PROCESS \_\_GOVERNMENT \_\_SCIENTIFIC X\_YES: UNRESTRICTED \_\_BEING CONSIDERED \_\_INDUSTRIAL \_\_TRANSPORTATION \_\_NO \_\_MILITARY ...OTHER: 4 OWNER OF PROPERTY NAME Mayor and Council of Delaware City STREET & NUMBER CITY, TOWN STATE Delaware City Delaware LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION COURTHOUSE. Recorder of Deeds REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC. STREET & NUMBER Public Building CITY, TOWN Delaware Wilmington 6 REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS TITLE Survey of Delaware Historic Sites and Buildings DATE 1975 \_\_FEDERAL  $ilde{ imes}$ STATE \_\_COUNTY \_\_LOCAL DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS Hall of Records CITY, TOWN STATE Delaware Dover

\_\_FAIR

## CONDITION

 $\frac{\mathbf{X}}{\mathbf{D}}$ DETERIORATED

\_\_UNALTERED

**CHECK ONE** 

\_\_EXCELLENT \_\_XDETERIO \_\_GOOD \_\_RUINS

XALTERED

XORIGINAL SITE

MOVED DATE

\_\_UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The lock at Delaware City is a stone structure, resting on wooden underpinnings, with a wooden floor. It stands near the mouth of the old C&D Canal, at the east end of the former cut. The lock gates no longer exist.

The short section of canal between the east end of the lock and the river has been filled, to provide parking. Westward from the lock, the old canal remains navigable for small pleasure boats.

The original canal locks were a hundred feet long and twenty-two feet wide. When the canal was originally built, the Delaware City lock had a lift of six to eight feet, and provided ungated passage on a high tide. From Delaware City to St. George's, a distance of 4.39 miles, the canal maintained a level of 7.66 feet above mean low water. Between 1851 and 1854, during a general improvement of the canal facilities, the locks were enlarged to 220 feet by twenty-four feet.

Even with enlarged facilities, the canal soon reached the limits of its capacity. As early as 1871, proponents of a ship canal were agitating for a sea-level waterway across the Delmarva isthmus. Other routes were considered, but in 1949 the federal government obtained title to the C&D Canal and began digging a sea-level cut along its route. The new canal was finally opened to oceangoing traffic, without locks, in 1927.

When the sea-level canal was built, all the locks were destroyed except the one at Delaware City. This lock survived because the new route entered the Delaware River by a new mouth at Reedy Point, two miles south.

Today, the old cut at Delaware City serves as a harbor for small boats. Since the entrance lock is blocked by an earth berm, small boats must travel south from this anchorage into the canal, in order to enter the river.

1 policion

## 8 SIGNIFICANCE

00000

<b>SPECIFIC DATES</b> 1829, 1854		BUILDER/ARCHITECT				
		INVENTION				
1900-	COMMUNICATIONS	INDUSTRY INVENTION	POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	OTHER (SPECIFY)		
X_1800-1899	COMMERCE	EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT	PHILOSOPHY	XXTRANSPORTATION		
1700-1799	ART	ENGINEERING	MUSIC	THEATER		
1600-1699	ARCHITECTURE	EDUCATION	MILITARY	SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN		
1500-1599	AGRICULTURE	ECONOMICS	LITERATURE	SCULPTURE		
1400-1499	ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC	CONSERVATION	LAW	SCIENCE		
PREHISTORIC	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC	COMMUNITY PLANNING	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE	RELIGION		
PERIOD	AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CHECK AND JOSTIFF BLLOW					

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The eastern lock of the Chesapeake and Delaware Canal in Delaware City is the last remaining lock structure on the old canal. At Chesapeake City, the western terminus, a pumphouse has been preserved.

In 1829, the Chesapeake and Delaware Canal first opened for traffic, culminating a half century of negotiations, proposals, false starts, and failures. Although the canal was only about fourteen miles long, it was a vital link in the all-water transportation system envisioned in Albert Gallatin's 1808 report to Congress.

Until it became federal property in 1919, the lock navigation was operated by a private corporation chartered in Delaware and Maryland, but backed by Philadelphia business interests. The original work was expanded during the early 1850's, when larger locks were installed and the cuts were deepened. The surviving lock and the pumphouse at Chesapeake City date from this expansion. Between 1854 and 1919, the canal's physical plant was little altered.

Battery Park in Delaware City was the eastern terminus of the canal navigation. This public open space remains virtually as it appeared during canal days. Mounted on a pedestal in the park is a diving bell, which was built to enable workmen to repair underwater equipment. West of Battery Park was a basin, now filled, which could accommodate several boats at a time.

## 9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Gray, Ralph D. The National Waterway. Chicago: The University of Illinois Press, 1967.

Snyder, Frank E., and Brian H. Guss. <u>The District</u>. Philadelphia: U. S. Army Engineer District Philadelphia, 1974.

	والمراوي والمساورة والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية والمنافية				
	APHICAL DATA NOMINATED PROPERTY Less ENCES	s than one acr	e 🧨 🗥	7 61 (j	
ZONE C		1,019,5,01 ING	B ZONE EAS	STING NOR	THING
VERBAL B	OUNDARY DESCRIPTION				
		y the Chesape		elaware River, ovare branch cana	
v*	in a grant of the second	, E0		v Zifs e	
LIST	ALL STATES AND COUNTIE	S FOR PROPERTIE	S OVERLAPPING S	TATE OR COUNTY BO	UNDARIES
STATE		CODE	COUNTY		CODE
STATE	and the second section of the second section of the second second second second section second section section	CODE	COUNTY		CODÉ
NAME / TITLE ORGANIZATIO	Edward F. Heite,			DATE TO L	1075
	Division of Historic	eal and Cultur	al Affairs	Feb	ruary 1975
STREET & NUM	BER Hall of Records	7	e i to granda (j. 1864).	TELEPHONE 302	678-4564
CITY OR TOWN	Dover		_	STATE	laware
	HISTORIC PRESI THE EVALUATED SINATIONAL		HIS PROPERTY WIT	HIN THE STATE IS:	ON
hereby nomina criteria and pro	ed State Historic Preservation te this property for inclusion cedures set forth by the Matio	in the National Re	ional Historic Prese	rvation Act of 1966 (Po	
TITLE	State Historic Pres	servation Offic	eer and Acting	Dir. DATE 3	27-75
FÖR NPS USE ON I HEREBY CI	ILY ERTIFY THAT THIS PROPERT	Y IS INCLUDED IN	THE NATIONAL RI	EGISTER	/
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	buser		DATE 4	21/75
DIRECTOR ATTEST KEEPER OF	OFFICE OF ARCHEOLOGY A  MULL THE NATIONAL REGISTER	NO HISTORIC PRE	SERVATION	DATE 4	18:75
NEEL EN OF	act -	-			